SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STATE
BOARD OF EMBALMERS AND FUNERAL DIRECTORS, BAUE FUNERAL
HOME CO. D/B/A BAUE FUNERAL HOMES AND LISA A. BAUE

COMES NOW the State Board of Embalmers and Funeral Directors (the “Board”)
Baue Funeral Home Co. d/b/a Baue Funeral Homes (“Baue Funeral Home”), and Lisa Baue
(“Director”) and enter into this Agreement ("Settlement Agreement").

Pursuant to the terms of Section 536.060, RSMo', as it is made applicable to the
Administrative Hearing Commission ("AHC") by Section 621,135, RSMo, the parties waive
the right to the filing of a disciplinary complaint by the Board with the AHC, a hearing of the
issues stipulated in this Settlement Agreement in front of the AHC, and, additionally, the
right to a disciplinary hearing before the Board pursuant to Section 621,110, RSMo, and
jointly stipulate and agree that a final disposition of this matter may be cffectuated as
described below.

Licensees acknowledge that they are aware of and understand the various rights and
privileges afforded to them by law, including: 1) the right to a hearing of the charges against
them; 2) the right to appear and be represented by legal counsel; 3) the right to have all
charges against them proven upon the record by competent and substantial evidence; 4) the
right to cross-examine any witness appearing at the hearing against them; 5) the right to
present evidence on their behalf at the hearing; 6) the right to a decision upon the record of
the hearing by a fair and impartial Administrative Hearing Commissioner concerning the

charges against them; 7) the right to a ruling on questions of law by the AHC; 8) the right to

' A1l references are to the 2000 Revised Statutes of Missouri unless otherwise noted.



a disciplinary hearing before the Board at which time they may present evidence in mitigation
of discipline; and 9) the right to a claim for attorney's fees and expenses. Being aware of

these rights provided them by operation of law, Licensees knowingly and voluntarily waive

each and every one of these rishts and freely enter into this Settlement Agreement. Licensees

further agree to abide by the terms of this document as they pertain to them.

Licensees acknowledge that they have received a copy of the investigative report and
other documents relied upon by the Board in determining that there was cause for discipline,
along with citations to law and/or regulations the Board believes was violated. Licensees
acknowledge that the Board and its attorney followed the procedures enumerated in Section
621.045, RSMo, including but not limited to: 1) providing them with a written description
of the specific conduct for which discipline is sought, and a citation to the law and rules
violated, together with copies of any documents which are the basis thereof;, 2) allowing
them at least sixty (60) days from the date of mailing to consider the Board's initial settlement
offer and discuss the terms of such settlement offer with the Board; 3) advising them that
they may, either at the time the settlement agreement is signed by all parties, or within fifteen
(15) days thereafter, submit the agreement to the AHC for determination that the facts agreed
to by the parties to the scttlement constitute grounds for denying or disciplining their
licenses; and 4) advising them that they have the right to consult an attorney at their own

expense in any contact pursuant to Section 621.045.3, RSMo, by the Board or its counsel.



For the purpose of settling this dispute, Licensees stipulate that the factual stipulations
contained in this agreement are true and stipulate with the Board that Baue Funeral Home’s
funeral establishment license, license number 001922, and Director’s and license to practice
as a funeral director, license number 004606, are subject to disciplinary action by the Board
in accordance with the provisions of Chapters 333, 436 and 621, RSMo.

Stipulated Findings of Fact

1. The State Board of Embalmers and Funeral Directors is an agency of the state
of Missouri created pursuant to Section 333.151, RSMo for the purpose of executing and
enforcing the provisions of chapter 333, RSMo.

2. Baue Funeral Home Co. is a Missouri corporation, in good standing, with its
principal place of business located at 620 Jefferson Street, St. Charles, Missouri, Baue
Funeral Homes is a registered fictitious name of Baue Funeral Home Co.

3. Baue Funeral Home holds Missouri funeral establishment license number
001922. Baue Funeral Home’s Missouri funeral establishment license is now, and was at all
times relevant herein, current and active.

4, St. Charles County Funeral Plan, Inc. (“St. Charles”), is a Missouri corporation
with its principal place of business located at 620 Jefferson Street, St. Charles, Missouri

63301, St. Charles holds no license issued by the Board.



5. Lisa Baue (“Director”’) holds Missouri funeral director license number 004606.
Director’s Missouri funeral director’s license is now, and was at all times relevant herein,
current and active.

6. Director is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Baue Funeral Home
Company and St. Charles.

7. On or about August 30, 2005, Baue Funeral Home, St. Chatles, and Director
entered into an “Assurance of Voluntary Compliance” (attached as Exhibit A and
incorporated herein by reference) with the State of Missouri, in which the state alleged that
Baue Funeral Home, St. Charles, and Director retained as their own money amounts
exceeding twenty percent of the total payment agreed to be paid by the purchasers of preneed
contracts as such total is reflected in each preneed contract, falsely promised and
misrepresented to consumers that at least eighty percent of payments on preneed contracts
would be placed in a preneed trust account when, at the time, the practice of Baue Funeral
Home, St. Charles and Director was not to deposit the payments in a preneed trust account;
and failed to deposit timely funds paid by purchasers of preneed contracts into preneed trust
accounts with state or federally chartered financial institutions authorized to exercise trust
powers in Missouri.

8. Pursuant to the “Assurance of Voluntary Compliance”, Baue Funeral Home,
St. Chatles, and Director agreed that the “Assurance of Voluntary Compliance” could be

used as a basis for discipline and agreed to enter into a settlement agreement with the Board

4.



imposing discipline of five years probation subject to certain terms and conditions on the
funeral director license held by Director and the funeral establishment license held by Baue

Funeral Home, based on the conduct described in the Assurance of Voluntary Compliance.

Stipulated Conclusions of Law

9. Jurisdiction and venue are proper before the Administrative Hearing
Commission (the “Commission”) pursuant to Section 333.121.2, RSMo, and Section
436.063, RSMo.

10.  Section 407.020, RSMo, states, in pertinent patt:

The act, use or employment by any person of any deception,
fraud, false pretense, false promise, misrepresentation, unfair
practice or the concealment, suppression, or omission of any
material fact in connection with the sale or advertisement of any
merchandise in trade or commerce or the solicitation of any
funds for any charitable purpose, as defined in section 407.453,
in or from the state of Missouri, is declared to be an unlawful
practice . . . Any act, use or employment declared unlaw{ul by
this subsection violates this subsection whether committed
before, during or after the sale, advertisement or solicitation.

11.  Section 436.027, RSMo, states:

The seller may retain as his own money, for the purpose of covering his
selling expenses, servicing costs, and general overhead, the initial funds
so collected or paid until he has received for his use and benefit an
amount not to exceed twenty percent of the total amount agreed to be
paid by the purchaser of such prepaid funeral benefits as such total
amount is reflected in the contract.

12.  Section 333.121.2, RSMo, states, in relevant portion, as follows:

2. The board may cause a complaint to be filed with the
administrative hearing commission as provided by chapter 621, RSMo,
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against any holder of any certificate of registration or authority, permit
or license required by this chapter or any person who has failed to
renew or has surrendered his certificate of registration or authority,
permit or license for any one or any combination of the following
causes:

# &k k%

(15) Violation of any of the provisions of chapter 193,
RSMo, chapter 194, RSMo, or chapter 436, RSMo;

13.  Theconductalleged inthe “Assurance of Voluntary Compliance”’, upon which
Baue Funeral Home and Director agreed that discipline could be based is in violation of -
Section 436.027, RSMo, in that Baue Funeral Home and Director kept funds in excess of the
twenty percent authorized by statute.

14,  There is cause to discipline the establishment license held by Baue Funeral
Home and the funeral director’s license held by Director pursuant to Section 333.121.2(15)
because Baue Funeral Home and Director have violated Section 436.027, RSMo.

JOINT AGREED DISCIPLINARY ORDER

Based upon the foregoing, the parties mutually agree and stipulate that the following
shall constitute the disciplinary order entered by the Board in this matter under the authority
of Sections 621.110, 333.100 and 436.063, RSMo. This disciplinary order will be effective
fifteen days from the date it is signed by the Executive Director of the Board.

15.  Probation of licenses. Missouri funeral establishment license number 001922,
held by Baue Funeral Home for its location at 620 Jefferson Street, St. Charles, Missourt, and

Missouri funeral director’s license number 004606, held by Lisa Baue, are hereby placed on

-6-



PROBATION for a period of five (5) years (the “Disciplinary Period™) subject to the terms
and conditions set forth below. During the Disciplinary Period, Baue Funeral Home shall
be entitled to operate as a funeral establishment and Director shall be allowed to practice as
a funeral director provided they comply with the terms and conditions of the Disciplinary
Period.

16. Terms and Conditions of the Disciplinary Period. Terms and conditions of
the Disciplinary Period are as follows:

A.  Baue Funeral Home shall keep the Board appraised at all times in
writing of its current business address and telephone number, and Director shall keep
the Board appraised at all times in writing of her current home and work addresses
and telephone numbers at each place of business. Baue Funeral Home and Director,
respectively, shall provide the Board with written notification within ten days of any
change in this information.

B. Baue Funeral Home and Director shall timely renew all Board issued
licenses and registrations and timely pay all fees for these renewals and comply with
all other requirements to iaintain her licenses and registrations in a current and active
state.

C. If, at any time within the Disciplinary Period, Baue Funeral Home
and/or Director change residence and/or place of business from the State of Missouri,

cease to be currently licensed under the provisions of Chapter 333 or Chapter 436, or
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fail to keep the Board advised of all current places of business and/or residence, the
time of absence, or unlicensed status or unknown whereabouts, shall not be deemed
or taken as any part of the Disciplinary Period.

D.  Baue Funeral Home and Director shall comply with all provisions of
Chapter 333, RSMo, Sections 436.005 through 436.071, RSMo, all rules and
regulations of the Board, and all state and federal laws related to the performance of
duties in the funeral industry.

E. Director and/or an agent of Baue Funeral Home shall appear before the
Board or its representatives upon the Board’s request.

F. Baue Funeral Home and Director shall accept and cooperate with
unannounced visits from the Board’s duly authorized representatives to monitor their
compliance with these terms and conditions.

G.  Baue Funeral Home and Director shall submit written reports to the
Board by no later than January 1 and July | during each year of the Disciplinary
Period stating truthfully whether there has been compliance with all terms and
conditions of this Settlement.

H. Baue Funeral Home shall comply with all terms and conditions of the

Assurance of Voluntary Compliance.
I7.  Upon the expiration and successful compietion-of the Disciplinary Period, the

establishment license held by Baue Funeral Home and the funeral director license held by
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Director shall be fully restored if all other requirements of the law have been satisfied;
provided however, that in the event the Board determines that either Baue Funeral Home or
Director, or both, have violated any term or condition of this Agreement, the Board may, in
its discretion, after an evidentiary hearing, vacate and set aside the discipline imposed herein
and may suspend, revoke, or otherwise lawfully discipline Baue Funeral Home’s
establishiment license and/or Director’s funeral director’s license.

18.  No order shall be entered by the Board pursuant to the preceding paragraph of
this Agreement without notice and an opportunity for hearing before the Board in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 536, RSMo.

19,  1f the Board determines that Baue Funeral Home and/or Director has violated
a term or condition of this Agreement, which violation would also be actionable in a
proceeding before the Administrative Hearing Commission or the circuit court, the Board
may elect to pursue any lawful remedies or procedures afforded it and is not bound by this
Agreement in its determination of appropriate legal actions concerning such violation.

20.  If any alleged violation of this Agreement occurs during the Disciplinary
Period, the Board may choose to conduct a hearing before it either during the Disciplinary
Period, or as soon thereafter as a hearing can be held, to determine whether a violation
occurred and, if so, may impose further disciplinary action. The Board has continuing

jurisdiction to hold a hearing to determine if a violation of this Agreement has occurred.



21.  The terms of this Agreement are contractual, legally enforceable and binding,
not merely recital. Except as otherwise continued herein, neither this Agreement nor any of
its provisions may be changed, revised, discharged, or terminated except by an instrument
in writing signed by the party against whom the enforcement of the change, waiver,
‘discharge, or termination is sought.

22. Each party agrees to pay all their own fees and expenses incurred as a result of
this case and any ensuing litigation.

23.  The parties to this Agreement understand that the Board will maintain the
Agreement as an open and public record as provided in Chapters 333, 436, 610 and 620,
RSMo.

24, Baue Funeral Home and Director, together with their heirs, assigns, agents,
employees, representatives and attorneys, do hereby waive, release, acquit and forever
discharge the Board, its respective members, employees, agents, and attorneys, including
former members, employees, agents, and attorneys, of, or from, any liability, claim, actions,
causes of action, fees, costs, expenses, and compensation, including, but not limited to, any
claims for attorney’s fees and expenses, whether or not now known or contemplated,
including, but not limited to, any claims pursuant to Section 536.087, RSMo 2000, or any
claim arising under 42 U.S.C. Section 1983, which may be based upon, arise out of, or relate
to any of the matters raised in this case, its settlement or from the negotiation or execution

ofits settlement. Licensees acknowledge that this paragraph is severable from the remaining
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portions of this Agreement in that it survives in perpetuity even in the event that any court
of law or administrative tribunal deems this Agreement or any portion thereof void or
unenforceable.

25.  Inconsideration of the foregoing, the parties consent to the termination of any
further proceedings based upon the facts set forth herein.

26.  Licensees may, either at the time of signing of this Agreement or within fifteen
days thereafter, submit this Agreement to the AHC to determine that the facts agreed to by
the parties constitute grounds for disciplining the licenses of Baue Funeral Home and
Director, If Baue Funeral Home or Director have requested review, the parties jointly
request the AHC determine whether the facts set forth herein are grounds for disciplining the
establishment license held by Baue Funeral Home and the funeral director’s license held by
Director and issue findings of fact and conclusions of law stating that the facts agreed to by
the parties are grounds for disciplining the establishment license held by Baue Funeral Home
and the funeral director’s license held by Director, Effective the date the AHC determines
that the Settlement Agreement sets forth cause for disciplining these licenses, the agreed
upon discipline set forth herein shall go into effect.

27.  Ifneither Baue Funeral Home nor Director have requested review by the AHC,

this Settlement Agreement shall go into effect 15 days after the document is signed by the

Executive Director of the Board.

LICENSEES STATE BOARD OF EMBALMERS AND
FUNERAL DIRECTORS
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[N THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE COUNTY OF COLE
STATE OF MISSOURI
CIRCUIT JUDGE DIVISION

STATE OF MISSOURI, ex rel.
JEREMIAH W, (JAY) NIXON,
Attorney General,
Plaintiff,
VS. Case No.
BAUE FUNERAL HOME COMPANY, Division

a Missouri corporation, and

$T. CHARLES COUNTY FUNERAL PLAN, INC.
a Missouri corporation, and

1YSA A. BAUE, an individual,

vvvvvvvvvvvvuvwvv

Defendants.,

PETITION FOR APPROVAL OF ASSURRANCE Ol VOLUNTARY COMPLIANCY

COMES NOW Jeremiah W. (Jay) Nixon, the duly clected, qualified and acting Altorney

General of the State of Missouri, and statcs as {ollows:

1. Jeremiah W. (Jay) Nixon is the duly elected, qualified, and acling Attorncy General of

the State of Missourd.
2. Scction 407.030.11" provides:

In the administration of this Chapter, the attorney gencral may accept an assurance
of voluntary compliance with yespect to any method, act, use, practice or solicitation
deemed to be violative of this chapter from any person who has engaged in or is engaging
in such a method, act, use, practice or solicitation. The assurance of voluntary
compliance sholl be in writing and shall be filed with and subject to the approval of the

1 All statute relerences arc to Mo.Rev.Stat.(2000), as amended, unless otherwise indicated.

1

Exhibi+ A
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circuit court of the county in which the alloged violator resides or has his principal ptace
of business, or the cireuit court of Colc County. Such assurance of voluntary compliance

shall not be considered an admission of violation for any purpose.
3. Tu administering Chapter 407, the Attorney General alleges that Defendants have
engaged in cortain practices deemed to be in violation of Section 407.1098.1,

4 .On or about the 30th day of August, 2005, the Migsouri Atlomey Gencral and the

Defendants cntered into an Assurance of Voluntary Compliance (“*AVC™) cxecuted pursuant to

Sections 407.030. This AVC is designed to assure the Missouri Attorney General and the
cltizens of the Statc of Missouri that Defendants will not engage in thosc practices alleged to be
unlawful by the Attorney General. The AVC, marked at Exhibit 1, is attached hereto and

incotporaled hercin by reference.

5. By cntering into this AVC, Defendants admit no wrong-doing. Additionally, this AVC

does not constitute a finding by this Court that Defendants have engaged in any methods, acts,

uses, praclices ot solicitations declared to be wnlawful under Section 407 .1098.1, ¢t seq. or any

rule or regulation promulgated thereto.
6. Tho AVC rellects that the Missouri Attorney General and the Defendants recommend
fhat this Court approve the AVC.
WHEREFORE, the Missowi Attorncy Goneral respectfully prays this Court to enter its

Order approving the AVC altached hereto as Exhibit 1.
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Respectfully submitted,

JEREMIAH W. (JAY) NIXON
Ajlomey General

SO

Rex M. Burlison #29935

Chief Counsel, Eastern District

111 North Seventh Street, Suite 934
St. Lounis, Missouti 63101

(314) 340-7653

(314) 340-7891 facsimile

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that on this 31st day of August, 2005, the foregoing was

mailed first-class, postage prepaid to:

DANIEL K, BARKLAGE, #26496
Atlomey at Law

Barklage, Brett, Martin, Wibbenmeyer & Hamill |
211 Notth Third Street |
St. Charles, Missouri 63301 |
Tolephone:  636.949.2120
Facsimile:  636.949.8786

Counsel {or Defendants wr—

Rex M. Buclison
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4 EXHIBIT

b1

IN TIIL CIRCUIT COURT OF THE COUNTY OF COLE
STATE O¥ MISSOURI
CIRCUIT JUDGE DIVISION

STATE OF MISSOURY, cx rel.
JEREMIAH W. (JAY) NIXON,
Aftoracy General,

Plaintift,

vs. Case No,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
RAUX FUNERAY, HOME COMPANY, ) Division
a Missonvi corporation, )

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

ST. CHARLES COUNTY FUNERAL PLAN, INC.,
a Missouri corporation,

and
1.ISA A. BAUR,

an individual,
Defendants.

ASSURANCE OF VOLUNTARY COMPLIANCE

The State of Missouri by and through its Attomey General, Jercmish W. (Jay) Nixon, and
Defendants Baue Puncral Home Company, St. Charles County Funeral Plan, Inc., and Lisa A,
Baue, by their signatures, agree to the following:

1. GENERAJL FINDINGS

I. Jurisdiction. This Court has jurisdiction aver the patties and the subject matter of
this Assurance of Voluntary Compliance ("AVC"). The Court is empowered to enter this AVC

pursuant to § 407.030.1 (R$Mo. 2000)".

LAl references to statutes are to Missouri Revised Statutes 2000, as presently amended
unless otherwise stated.



SEP-14-2005 WED 12:18 PM 5736364667 FAX NO. 5736364667 P,

2. Dlainti{f is the State of Missouri acting by and through Jeremiah W. (Jay) Nixon,
the duly cleeted, qhali {ied and acting Attorney General of the State of Missouri, who is duly
responsiblo for the enforecment and administration of Chapters 407 and 436. Rex M. Burlison
is a duly appointed and qualified Assislant Attorney General of the State of Missouri and is duly
authotized to act on behalf of the Attorney General in this matter.
3. Defendant Bave Tuneral Home Company is a Missouri corporalion with its
principal place of businoss in St. Charles Missourd, located at 6207 efferson Strcet, St. Charles,

Missouri 63301,

4. Defendant St. Charles County Funeral Plan, Inc., is a Missouri corporation with

its principal place of business in St. Charles Missouri, located at 620 Jefferson Street, St.

Charles, Missouri 63301.

5. Defendant Lisa A. Bauc is a resident of St. Charles County Missour, and she is
the president and chief exceutive officer of Bave Funeral Home Company and St. Charles County

Funeral Man, e, Lisa A. Baue holds a funeral director’s license from the Missouri State Board

of Embalmers and Funeral Directors.

6. Authority, Section 407.030.1 provides:

{n the administration of this Chapter, the attorney pcneral may accept an assurance
of voluntary compliance with respect 10 any method, act, uso, practice or
solicitation deemed to be violative of this chapter from any person who has
engaged in or is engaging in such a melhod, act, use, practice or solicitation. The
assurance of voluntary compliance shall be in writing and shall be filed with and
subject to the approval of the circuit court of the county in which the alleged
violator resides or has his principal place, or the circuit court of Cole County.
Such assurance of voluntary compliance shall not be considered an admission of

violation for any purposc.
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7. Scverabilitv. If any provision or provisions of this AVC is or are declared invalid

by « court of competent jurisdiction, the rest of this AVC shall remain in full force and effect and

shall not be affected by such declaration.

8. Non-Approval. Dofendants, through their agents, representatives and/or
employees shall not, directly or indirectly, represent to any person, natural or othcrwise, that the
Missouri Altormey General or any of his gmployees, sanctions, endorses, or approves of any

mcthods, acts, uges, practices, or solicitations nnderteken by or on behalf of Defendants.

9, Jurisdiction Retgined. Jurisdiction is retained for the purpose of enabling any

parly to this AVC to apply to the Court at any time for the purpose of cnforcement of the
provisions herein or for the punishment of a violation of this AVC pursuant to the provisions of
Section 4077.030.

10.  Scopeof AVC. This AVC embodics the entire agreement and understanding of
{he parties hereto with respect to the subject matter contained herein.

11.  Consent. The parties have read and understand the natore, tenms and contents of
this Assurance of Voluntary Compliance. Decfendants have had the opportunity to consult with
lepal counsel regarding this Assurance of Voluntary Compliance, have becn apprized of their
rights, and agree to be bound by all provisions contained herein, waiving any right to trial or
appeal,

12 Warranties. Each party watrants and represents that the person executing this

Ao

Assurance of Voluntary Compliance is authorized to do so on its behalf.

13. Recommendation. The Plaintiff and Defendants recommend that this Court

approve this AVC.
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1L MERCHANDTSING PRACTICES OF DEFENDANTS

PLAINTIFIS ALLEGATIONS

14.  Delendants have been selling preneed contracts.? St. Charles County Funcral
Plan, Ine. is a seller of prenced contracts os «geller” i¢ defined in section 436.005(9). Lisa Baue
is the Chief Exccutive Olficer of Baue Funcral Home Company and St. Charles County Funeral

Plan, Inc.

15,  Bauc Funeral Home Company is a “provider” as defined by scction 436.007(7)
and St. Charles County Funeral Plan, Inc., acted as its selling agent. (

16.  The prenced contracts sold by Baue® require the current payment of money in
consideration for the final disposition of 2 dead human body, or for funeral or burial services or
facilities, or tor funeral mcrchandise, where such disposition, services, facililies, or merchandise

arc not immediately required.

17.  Dauc’s sale of prenced contracts to Missouri consumers constituted “tradc” or

“sorpmeree’ as those terms are defined in section 407.010(7).

18. In connection with the sale of prenced funeral contracts, Baue has accepted

payments from prenced contract purchasers to fund the preneed contracts.

19.  According to section 436.005(9), Baue as was responsible for collecting and

At it

2gection 436.005(5) defines “prenced contract” as “any contract or other arrangement
which requires the current payment of moncy or othor property in consideration for the final
digposilion of a dead human body, or for funcral or burial services or facilitics, or for funeral
merchandise, where such disposition, scrvices, facilities or merchandise arc not immediately

requiced ...

egque” refers to Baue Funeral Home Company, st. Charles County Funeral Plan, Inc,,
Lisn A, Baue, and their cmployces.
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administering all payments made under prenecd contracts.

20.  Baue deposited thesc payments from preneed contract purchascrs into 2 gencral
business aperating aceount.

21.  From May 2001 through Decernber 2004, Defendants Baue Funeral Home
Company, St. Charles County TFuneral Plan, Inc., and Lisa A. Baue violated Chapters 407 and
436, (R§Mo. 2000), by mishandling payments received from the sale of preneed contracts for

fancral and/or burial services and merchandise. During this period of time, Baue collected

payments frotn the sale to Missouri consumers of 2,410 prenecd contracts and initially retained in

excoss ol twenty percent of the total payment received under thosc preneed contracts, in violation

of suction 436.027. Furthermore, Baue failed to deposit, within a reasonable time of receipt, at
Jeast cighty percont of the total payments recoived on the preneed contracts, fn prenced trust

accounts, as requircd by section 436.031. Instead, Baue used these monies to pay its general

busginess expenscs.

52 As of January 2005, Bave's prenced trust accounts were underfunded due to
Bave's Ruilure to make sufficicnt deposils from preneed contract payments, as required by statute

[a Yebroaty of 2005, the preneed frust account was fully funded by Baue. Defendants have

provided the Attorney Greneral with banking documents which evidence that the preneed account

has been fully funded.
23. . Defendants have violated scction 407.020 by the following:
4. Baue Funcral Home Company, St. Charles County Funeral Plan, and Lisa A.
[Saue have violated sections 407.020.1 and 436.027 in connection with the sale of prenced

funceal conlracts by retaining as their own moncy amounls exceeding twenty percent of the total

14



SEP-14-2005 WED 12:19 PM 5736364687 FAX NO. 5736364667 P.

amount agroed to be paid by the purchascrs of preneed contracts as such total is reflected in each
preneed contract:

b. Baug Funeral Home Company, St. Churles County Funeral Plan, and Lisa A.
Baue violated scction 407.020.1 in connection with the sale of preneed funcral conlracts by
falsely promising and misrepresenting to consumers that at least eighty percent of payments on
preneed contracts would be placed ina prenced trust account when, at the time, Baue's practice
was not to deposit the payments in a prenced trust account; and

c. aue Funcral lHome Company, St. Charles County Funcral Plan, and Lisa A.
Baue violated the provisions of scetions 436.027, 436.031, and 407.020.1 by failing to timely
doposit funds paid by the purchasers of preneed coniracts into prenecd trust accounts with state
or federally chartered financial institutions authorized to exercisc frust powets in Missouri.

DEFENDANT’S STATEMENT

24,  Plaintiff and Defendant agree that the entering into or performance of this AVC,
pursuant to Scction 407 030.1 (R$Mo.) is not intended to be and shall not be construed as an
admission of any kind on any matter by either Plaintiff or Defendants.

I11. ASSURANCE

25 Defendants now agree, as follows:
. Defendants have fully funded the preneed trust account named “The
Amended and Restatod Trust Agreement Yor Prenced Cemetory Merchandise and Scrvices, dated
Janvary 18, 2005". As svidenoed by documents presented to the Attomey General, this Trust

was fully funded on February 28, 2003.

b. Delendants shall deliver to the Plaintiff the original and ali subsequent
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amendments thereto, of the Trust documents used for deposit of funds paid by purchasers of
prensed contracts. Said trust documents shall prohibit the Trustee fromn disbursing any funds
from the trust, without first obtaining a cortified death certi (icate cvidencing the death of the
prenced contract consuiner upon whosc death the disbursemoent of funds is being requested. The
Trust documents shall be amended within 30 days of the execution of this AVC to prohibit such
disbursement without a certified death cortificate.

26.  Defendants agree that they shall not engage in any unfair practice which violates
Section 407.020 or Section 436.027, including, but not limited to:

a. Retaining as their own money for more than fifteen (15) days after the end of
the month in which the payment is received, amounts cxceeding twenty percent of the total
amount ageeed to be paid by the purchasers of such prepaid foneral benefits as such total is
rcflected in the contract; and

b. Retaining any consumer payments for pren eed contracts, which by contract and
section 436.031 arc required to be placed in a preneed trust account; and

¢. Engaging in the practice of promising, expressly ox implicdly to prenced
purchascs, that at lcast eighty percent of preneed funeral funds obtained from preneed purchasers

will be placed in a pronced trust account and failing to place such funds ina preneed {rust

account.

27.  For the years of 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009, Defendants agree for each of
these years, to provide Plaintiff with an audit, performed at Defendants’ expense, by an
independent accounting firni, on or before March 15 of the following year, for all Defendants’

prenced contracts, including the amounts of those contracts, the payments consumers have made
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ou thase contracts, the amounts of those payments retained or cxpended by Defendants, the

amounts of those payments deposited in preneed trust accounts, and the amount of any shortfall

in the preneed Lust accounts.

28,  Defendants shall, upon request in writing of the Plaintiff, allow Plaintiff to inspect
and copy its books of account and financial accounting of all prenced contracts and {rusts.

29, Defendants agrec to comply with sections 436.005 through 436.071 on Funcral
Contracts, and this compliance shall include depositing, within fifteen (15) days after the end of

the month in which the payment is received, in the preneed trust accounts of Baue Funeral Home
Conpany and 8t. Charles County Funcral Plan, Inc., the statutory amount of consumer payments
for preneed conlracts, 0 that those trust accounts are fully funded according to sections 43 6.02’!
and 436.031.

30.  Defendants agree to make a contribution to the Missouri Merchandising Practices

Revolving Fund the amount of One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000.00) for the

Atiormey General’s cost of investigating Defendants’ activities. This contribution shall be paid

by Dofendants in two installmonts. The first payment of Seventy Five Thousand Dollars
(§75,000.00) shall be paid within thirly (30) days of the execution of this AVC. The second
payment of Seventy Five Thousand Dollars (37 5.000.00)shali be paid by Defendants within one
(1) year of the due date of the first payment.

31, Baue aprecs to enter into a settlement agreement with the State Board of
LEmbalmers and Funeral Dircctors imposing discipline of five year probation subject to cerfain

teirns and conditions on the funcral director license held by Lisa Baue and the funeral
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establishraent license held by Baue funeral Home Company, Inc., This discipline to be based on
the conduct deseribed in this AVC.

32 Baue agrees that in the cvent fhe amount of money paid by a pariicular consumer
exceeds the amount of money due the funeral home for the provision of goods and services at the
time of death, any excess funds shall be distributed to the cstate of the decedont or t0 any named
beneficiary.

33. Baue agrees that so long as Bauc Funeral Home Company and St. Charles County
Fuperal Plan, Ino. act as cither a prenced seller ot preneed provider in Missouri, Bave Funeral
Horme Company and St. Charles County Funeral Plag, Inc., shall maintain cucrent registrations
with the State Board of Embatmers and Funcral Directors by timely filing annual registration

reports and timely payraeat of any applicable fees due, as required by the provisions of Chapter

436, RSMo,

34, Itis furlher agreed that the Attorney Gencral, without further notice, may make ex
parte application to the Cireuit Court for Cole County for entry and approval of this AVC.

35, The mailing of a copy of this signed and filed AVC o Defendants at the address
shown below shall constitute notice and acceptance by Defendants of all tho terms of this AVC

and Defendants wuive having the AVC served upon it in any other manher.

3G.  “The partios to this AVC understand and agree that, if the Missouri Attorncy
General believes Defendants have violated any of the provisions of this AVC the Attomcy
General is not restrained from initiating {urlher investigations or legal proceedings against

Defendants, including those procedures set forth in § 407.020, et scd.

97, This AVC shall be binding upon the heirs, personal representatives, SUCCCSSOIS,
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and assigns of the partics hereto.

38.  The requirements upon Defendants of this AVC may ot be waived or modi fied
except in a writing signed by an assistant attorney general for Plaintiff, or by Court Order.

39.  This AVC shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the Jaws of the

State of Missourd,

DREFENDANT'S SIGNATURE AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

BAUE FUNERAL HOME CO%IPANYME
S, Cr \Seoa 9

i

T . ~

Its: ___ (PV 1-’-';*1 O N\‘?C

State of Missouri
County of St. Charles

On this@m h _day of August 20051 befoﬁ ;@% Vl . é[U la-n(iﬂ Notary Public

in am},fjn' said state, personally appeared . who stated that he/she is
the 1" FE&OL 5 ..of Buue Funcral Home Company and executed this Assurance

of Voluntary Compliance on behalf of said corpotation, and acknowledged to me that he/she
cxecutod the same for the purposes (herein stated. In witness whereof I have hereunto subseribed

my name and aflixed my oflicial scal. ’
Notary %Aia

lic

18

My Conunission Expires: ,‘7! “&3 < D%W “NOTARY SEAL"
NANCY K. GARLAND, NOTARY PUBLIC

ST, CHARLES COUNTY, STATE OF MISSOUR!
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES APRIL 28. 2007

10
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ST. CHARLLEHS/ OUNTY EUN(E_I}AL PL.AN, INC.

By: O\ A (a :\‘h\'()ﬁ,{.'\-(/
Iis: Pr\.\-’ St C,Og A ,QJ--

State of Missowi
County of St. Charlcs

On this ﬂh__ day of August 2003, befﬁe @%ﬂﬂﬂl_ﬁ_ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁiﬁ Notary Public

in and fos sald state, personally appeared f 4 _who stated that he/she is
tho'“lsrf&\[\ ot of St. Charles County Funeral Plan, Inc., and executed this

Assurance of Voluntary Compliance on behalf of said corporation, and acknowledged to me that
he/she executed the same for the purposcs (herein stated, In witness whereof T have herounto

subscribed my namo and affixed my official seal.

Notary Pu@lic

wionmos TSI _
My Commission Expires: j h - ARy SEAT
NANGY K. GARLAND, NOTARY PUBLIC
ST, CHARLES COUNTY, STATE OF MISSOURI
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES APAIL 28, 2007

LISA A.BAUE

State of Misgouri
County of St. Charles

N
On this E% day of August 2003, before pe . Notary Public
u&i @QU & . who stated that she

in and for said state, personally appeared A
executed this Assurance of Voluntary Compliance, and acknowledped to me that she executed
the same for the purposes thorein stated. In witness whereof | have hereunto subscribed my name

and affixed my official seal. A{ ‘ r

Notary @b}ic
My Commission Expires: Lﬂ:&%’/ OB(

“NOTARY SEAL'
NANCY K. GARLAND, NOTARY PUBLIC
ST. CHARLES COUNTY, STATE OF MISSOURI
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES APAIL 28, 2007

11
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BAUL FUNERAL HOME COMPANY
ST. CHARLES COUNTY FUNERAL PLAN, INC.
leA \ A. BAUE

._D ,W_J St
Danicl ylhll\laﬁg#%éi% ./
‘Atlorney at Law
Barklage, Brett, Mactin, Wibbenmeyer & Hamill
211 North Third Street
St. Charles, Missouri 63301
Telephone:  636.949.2120
Facsimile: 636.949.8786
Counsel! for Defendants

ACCEPTANCE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

JEREMIAH W. (JAY) NIXON
Attorney General

W_;

Rex M. Burlison

Chief Counsel, Eastern District
720 Qlive Street, Suite 2150
St. Louis, Missouri 63101
Telephone: 314.340.7653
Facsimile: 314.340.7891

12
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